
 

Please contact Gill Ferguson on  0151 471 7395 or e-mail 
gill.ferguson@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Thursday, 17 November 2011 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

PART 1 
 
 

Item Page No 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 
 

 
 

3. RESOURCES PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2011/12: 2ND 
QUARTER JULY – SEPTEMBER   

 

1 - 9 

Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
Thursday, 3 November 2011 10.00 a.m. 
The Board Room - Municipal Building, 
Widnes 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  
Item Page No 
  

 

 (B) TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2011/12: MID-YEAR 
REVIEW   

 

10 - 17 

4. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
 

 

 PART II 
 In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public and, in view of the nature of the business 
to be transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that under Section 
100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, having been 
satisfied that in all the circumstances of the case the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
  
 

 

 (A) WASTE RECEPTION, RECYCLING AND TRANSFER 
SERVICES TENDER   

 

18 - 25 

 
 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 
REPORT TO:   Executive Board Sub-Committee 
 
DATE:    3rd November 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER:  Operational Director – Finance 
 
TITLE:    Treasury Management 2011/12 
      2nd Quarter: July - September 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to update the Sub-Committee about 

activities undertaken on the money market as required by the Treasury 
Management Policy. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDED:  That the report be noted 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

The following has been provided by Sector, the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisors: 

 
3.1 Economic Background 
 
 The third quarter of 2011 saw: 
 

• Indicators suggested that the economy has at best stagnated; 

• Conditions on the high street had deteriorated further; 

• Employment had fallen again; 

• The public finances were expected to miss this year’s fiscal forecasts; 

• CPI inflation rising, heading for a peak of around 5% in Q4; 

• The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) signalled a move towards 
increasing Quantitative Easing (QE); 

• Equities prices plummeted and gilt yields fell to historic lows; 

• The economic recovery faltered in the US and Europe. 

 
Activity indicators suggest that the economic recovery has ground to a 
halt. Indeed, the weighted output balance of the CIPS/Markit surveys 
fell in August to a level that has been consistent with contraction in the 
past. The surveys also exclude retail activity – and the latest news from 
the high street suggests that the sector is in a similar position. While 
sales volumes rose by 0.2% m/m in July, they fell by the same amount 
in August. 

 

Agenda Item 3aPage 1



However, output for the first quarter was depressed by a variety of 
factors (including the one-off Bank Holiday for the Royal Wedding in 
April and the after-effects of the Japanese earthquake), so the 
economy might still register growth in the second quarter. 

 
Meanwhile, the fading of the economic recovery has impacted on the 
job market. The Labour Force Survey measure of employment fell by 
70,000 in the three months to July, the first fall this year. And the ILO 
measure of unemployment rose by 80,000 over the same period – the 
largest rise in two years. The timelier (but narrower) claimant count 
measure also rose by a monthly 33,700 in July and 20,300 in August. 
The pace of job losses across the whole economy looks unlikely to 
ease off in the coming months. Job vacancies in the three months to 
August were 1.3% lower than a quarter ago, while the employment 
balances of all three of the CIPS surveys were below the 50-mark in 
July and August (below 50 marks a contraction in expectations). 

 
Meanwhile, the public finances are on track to miss this year’s fiscal 
forecasts. If the trend in borrowing seen over the first five months of the 
fiscal year continues, it will be around £5bn higher than the OBR 
expects. Admittedly, the full impact of some tax changes have yet to be 
felt, but the lags between developments in the economy and the public 
finances suggest that the recent slowdown is unlikely to have had its 
full effect on receipts. 

 
Conditions in the housing market have also continued to deteriorate. 
Whilst the number of mortgage approvals for new house purchase rose 
from 48,800 in June to 52,400 in August, this has not prevented 
renewed falls in house prices. The Nationwide index ended the second 
quarter 0.2% lower than at the end of the first. 

 
The trade in goods and services deficit was £4.5bn in July, compared 
to an average monthly deficit of £3.8bn in Q1. The survey measures of 
export orders also point to falls in exports ahead – the new export 
orders balance of the CIPS Manufacturing survey, for example, fell to 
its lowest level since May 2009 in September. At that level, it points to 
a quarterly drop in the volume of manufactured goods exports of 
around 5%. 

 
Inflation continued to climb in the second quarter. CPI inflation rose 
from 4.2% in June to 4.4% in July and 4.5% in August. A series of rises 
in electricity and gas prices also took effect in late August and 
September which, together with a rise in food inflation reflecting past 
rises in agricultural commodity prices, could push inflation close to 5% 
in September. 

 
Inflation may creep a little higher in the third quarter – but recent 
developments suggest that it should fall quite sharply next year. Oil 
prices fell from $113 per barrel at the end of Q1 to $106 at the end of 
Q2. Agricultural prices also fell over the past quarter. Surveys of 

Page 2



manufacturers pricing intentions in Q2 also pointed to a fall in producer 
output price inflation ahead. Meanwhile, the continued weakness of the 
broad money supply and lending data in Q2 and the persistence of a 
large degree of spare capacity in the economy also suggest that 
inflation will fall sharply in 2012. 

 
Measures of inflation expectations have drifted up – the Bank of 
England’s measure of households’ inflation expectations in the year 
ahead rose from 3.9% to 4.2% in Q2. However with conditions in the 
labour market continuing to deteriorate, these expectations seem 
unlikely to become ingrained. The annual rate of average earnings 
growth including bonuses fell from 3.1% to 2.9% in July (the rate 
excluding bonuses fell from 2.2% to 1.7%). Real pay growth has thus 
remained negative. 

Meanwhile, the MPC became distinctly more dovish during Q2. 
Spencer Dale and Martin Weale both abandoned their votes for a rate 
hike at the meeting in August. The minutes of September’s meeting 
also suggested that QE2 will be launched soon, although, no other 
members have yet joined Adam Posen in voting for more QE. Most 
have however accepted that the case for policy stimulus has 
significantly strengthened and that “a continuation of the conditions 
seen over the past month would probably be sufficient to justify an 
expansion of the asset purchase programme at a subsequent 
meeting.” 

Financial market sentiment deteriorated sharply in the second quarter, 
reflecting declining prospects for economic growth and renewed risk 
aversion as a result of the intensification of the euro-zone sovereign 
debt crisis. The FTSE 100 finished the quarter at 5,128 – about 14% 
lower than its level at the end of the first quarter. Ten year gilt yields 
plummeted from 3.38% to 2.43%, reflecting falling interest rate 
expectations, safe-haven flows as a result of a perceived rise in default 
risk on sovereign debt in the euro-zone and perhaps expectations that 
further QE might soon be on the way. Meanwhile, a global shift away 
from risk saw the dollar strengthen. As a result, sterling weakened 
against the dollar from about $1.60 to $1.56, but strengthened slightly 
against the euro from €1.16 to €1.10. 

 
In the US, economic data was weak, but a little stronger than in the UK. 
The US ISM indices pointed to annualised quarterly GDP growth of 
around 1.5% in July and August. Growth in payrolls also stagnated in 
August. And while President Obama proposed a $450bn job creation 
bill, equivalent to nearly 3% of GDP, it seems unlikely to be passed by 
Congress in full. 

 
Growth has also slowed sharply in the euro-zone. In particular, the 
ECB composite PMI now pointed to outright falls in GDP in August. A 
steep drop in the EC Economic Sentiment Indicator in August also left 
the index consistent with a sharp slowdown in annual GDP growth in 
the region. 

Page 3



3.2 Economic Forecast 
 
The following forecast has been provided by Sector: 

 

 
The Sector central forecast is for the first increase in bank rate to be in 
September 2013. PWLB rates and bond yields are experiencing exceptional 
levels of volatility which are highly correlated to political developments (or lack 
of them) in the sovereign debt crisis. 

SUMMARY OUTLOOK 

Sector has undertaken a review of their interest rate forecasts as a result of 
two major events: - 

1. The decision by the MPC to expand quantitative easing over the next 
four months by a further £75bn which had an immediate effect of 
depressing gilt yields at the long end of the curve.  It also clearly 
underlines how concerned the MPC now is about the prospects for 
growth of the UK economy and that recession is now decisively a much 
greater concern than inflation. 

2. The marked deterioration of growth prospects in the US, EU and UK, 
especially as concerns have further increased over Greece and the 
potential fall out from their debt situation.  This has led in turn to a 
further increase in safe haven flows into UK gilts since our last interest 
rate forecast (16.8.11) which have depressed gilt yields and PWLB 
rates to even lower levels. 

These developments had left short term forecasts for PWLB rates markedly 
out of line with actual rates.  They have also substantially pushed back 
expectations of the timing of the eventual start of increases in Bank Rate and 
the expected eventual rise in gilt yields and PWLB rates. 

In summary, concerns around a slow down in prospects for GDP growth in the 
western world are as follows: -- 

US 
• Current weak GDP growth; jobless recovery 
• Fed unlikely to increase central rate until mid 2013 
• Latest Fed Twist operation unlikely to save US economy from weak 

growth in the shorter term 
• Near exhaustion of major fiscal and monetary remedies 

 NOW Dec11 Mar12 Jun12 Sep12 Dec12 Mar13 Jun13 Sep13 Dec13 Mar14 Jun14 

Sectors 
Bank Rate 
View 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 
 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.75% 

 
1.00% 

 
1.25% 

 
1.50% 

5yr PWLB 
 

2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.10% 

10yr PWLB 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 4.00% 4.20% 

25yr PWLB 4.20% 4.20% 4.20% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 

50yr PWLB 4.30% 4.30% 4.30% 4.30% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 

Page 4



• Political gridlock ahead of Nov 2012 Presidential elections for major 
fiscal action 

• New President unlikely to make significant impact on the US economy 
in 2013 

• Housing market still fraught and banks face rising losses on mortgages 
which will lead in turn to restricted supply of credit to the economy; little 
hope of the housing market turning around in the near future 

 
EU 

• Sovereign debt crisis is morphing into an EU banking crisis where 
some weaker banks will need semi-nationalisation to cope with a major 
write down of Greek debt, resulting in an increase in government debt 
levels.  This in turn could threaten (e.g.) the French AAA rating and 
lead to an increase in concerns for the size of the French debt to GDP 
ratio 

• EU economy now heading into recession in 2012; increasing lack of 
supply of bank credit plus major fall in consumer and business 
confidence will inhibit economic growth 

• High risk that 17 Euro zone nations will not agree on what to do about 
Greece ahead of financial markets losing patience and precipitating a 
crisis 

• German elections in 2013 getting ever closer; German voters hostile to 
bailing out Greece and other weak peripherals 

 
UK 

• 40% of UK GDP dependent on overseas trade; high correlation of UK 
growth to US and EU GDP growth means that the UK economy may 
only barely escape recession in the next two years 

• Consumers have paid down total debt to income ratio from 180% in 
2008 to 160%.  OBR forecasts March 2011 for GDP growth of 2.5% in 
2012 and 3.0% in the following three years are predicated on an 
increase in consumer spending and borrowing taking that ratio back to 
175% by 2015 i.e. an increase of £570bn in debt.  This is highly 
unlikely given current consumer sentiment, job fears, high inflation 
eroding disposable incomes, small or no pay increases, mortgagors 
coming off initial cheap fixed rate deals onto higher SVR rates etc. 

• Little sign of a coordinated strategy for the private sector to finance a 
major expansion of infrastructure investment to boost UK growth 

• Little sign of a major increase in exports to boost UK growth 
• QE2 likely to be too little too late to boost UK growth significantly in the 

near term 
 
CHINA 

• Increasing concerns that efforts to gently slowdown the economy to 
cool inflation could lead into a hard landing.    

 
 
 
 

Page 5



3.3 Short Term Rates 
  
 The bank base rate remained at 0.50% throughout the quarter. 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
3.4   Longer Term Rates 
 

  July Aug Sept 
 Start Mid End Mid End Mid End 

 % % % % % % % 
1 Year (Market) 1.58 1.59 1.59 1.61 1.65 1.68 1.72 
10 Year (PWLB) 4.50 4.31 4.16 3.81 3.80 3.59 3.55 
25 Year (PWLB) 5.22 5.13 5.06 4.94 4.80 4.64 4.53 

 
 Market rates are based on LIBOR rates published at the middle and 

end of each month. PWLB rates are for new loans based on principal 
repayable at maturity.  

 
3.5 Temporary Borrowing/Investments 
 
 Turnover during period 
 

 No. Of Turnover 
 Deals Struck £m 
Short Term Borrowing 5 13.00 
Short Term Investments 34 61.74 

  
 Position at Month End 
 

 July Aug Sept 

 £m £m £m 
Short Term Borrowing 18.00 20.00 18.00 
Short Term Investments 47.61 52.32 52.80 

 
Investments increased during the quarter as a result of delays in the 
capital programme with borrowing to finance the capital programme 
remaining fairly constant. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  July Aug Sept 
 Start Mid End Mid End Mid End 

 % % % % % % % 
Call Money (Market) 0.60 0.59 0.60 0.60 0.61 0.61 0.62 
1 Month (Market) 0.63 0.63 0.63 0.65 0.66 0.67 0.69 
3 Month (Market) 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.86 0.89 0.92 0.95 

Page 6



 Investment Income Forecast 
 
 The forecast income and outturn for the quarter is as follows: 
 

 Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative 
 Budget Actual Target Rate Actual Rate 
 £’000 £’000 % % 

Quarter 1 19 34 0.46 1.09 
Quarter 2 37 218 0.47 1.16 
Quarter 3 64    
Quarter 4 90    

 
The actual rate exceeds the benchmark rate. This is due to the 
management of cash deposits around the planned delivery of the 
capital programme and most notably the acquisition of land for the 
Mersey Gateway project. 

 
The target rate is based on the 7-day LIBID rate. For comparison 
purposes the 1 month average rate was 0.52%, 3 month rate was 
0.70% and the 6 month rate was 1.02%.  

 
3.6 New Borrowing 
 

Sector’s 25 year PWLB target rate for new long term borrowing for the 
quarter started at 5.40% and ended at 5.10%. The average PWLB rate 
for 5 year borrowing during the quarter was 2.59%. Due to the overall 
financial position and the underlying need to borrow for capital 
purposes (the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), new external 
borrowing of £13.0m was undertaken from the Market as follows    

 
  
 
 
 
 
 It is anticipated that further borrowing will be undertaken during this 

financial year.  
 
3.7 Policy Guidelines 
 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2011/12, 
which includes the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the 
Council on 2nd March 2011.  It sets out the Council’s investment 
priorities as being: 

• Security of Capital; 

• Liquidity; and 

• Yield 

Source Value (£m) Rate (%) 
Market 8.00 0.85 
Market 5.00 1.35 

Page 7



The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on 
investments commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.   

 In the current economic climate and the heightened credit concerns it is 
considered appropriate to keep investments short term with a 
maximum duration of 3 months.  

 
This limit will apply to all entities on the suggested Sector Credit List 
with the following exceptions: 
 
1. UK Government and related entities such as Local Authorities. 

Their suggested duration limit will remain at 5yrs. 
 
2. UK semi-nationalised institutions (Lloyds / RBS). We continue to 

view the current significant UK ownership of these entities as 
providing significant comfort to investors. 

 
During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the 
treasury limits and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and in compliance with the 
Council’s Treasury Management Practices. 
 
There approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not 
breached during the quarter ended 30th September 2011.  

 
4.0 DEBT RESCHEDULING 
 
4.1 No debt rescheduling was undertaken during the quarter. 
 
5.0 OTHER 
 
5.1 Counterparties 
 
 Following continued euro zone concerns renewed fears of low growth 

projections in the UK, the long term credit ratings of all the banks 
(except Barclays) held on the Council’s counterparty list were 
downgraded.  

 
 None of the counterparties fell below the Council’s minimum 

requirements as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy 2011/12 
or are reporting any expected difficulties in returning any current or 
future deposits to the Council. 

 
 The level of uncertainty in the current economic climate means that it is 

very difficult to place deposits with counterparties who are unaffected 
by world economic events. The Council continues to manage its 
treasury management function in accordance with its Treasury 
Management Strategy prioritising in order security, liquidity and yield.  

 
 
 

Page 8



6.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None 
 
7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
8.1  Children and Young People in Halton 
  
 None 
 
8.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
   
    None  
 
8.3  A Healthy Halton 
 
 None 
 
8.4  A Safer Halton 
 
 None 
 
8.5  Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
 None 
 
9.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
9.1 The main risks with Treasury Management are security of investment 

and volatility of return. To combat this, the Authority operates within a 
clearly defined Treasury Management Policy and annual borrowing and 
investment strategy, which sets out the control framework  

 
10.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
10.1 There are no issues under this heading. 
 
11.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
11.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 
 

Page 9



 
REPORT TO:   Executive Board Sub-Committee 
 
DATE:    3rd November 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER:  Operational Director – Finance 
 
TITLE:    Treasury Management 2011/12 
     Mid Year Review 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to update the Sub-Committee about 

activities undertaken at the mid-year point of 2011/12 as required by 
the Treasury Management Policy. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDED:  That Council be recommended to approve the 

revised Prudential Indicators and the increase in counterparty 
limits for Lloyds/TSB and Royal Bank of Scotland. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1  The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash 

raised during the year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the 
treasury management operation is to ensure this cash flow is 
adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity before considering 
investment return. 

 
3.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the 

funding of the Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a 
guide to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term 
cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its capital spending 
operations. This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow 
surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives 
 

3.3  The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (revised November 2009) 
was adopted by full Council on 3rd March 2010.  

 
3.4 The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  
 

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy 
Statement which sets out the policies and objectives of the 
Council’s treasury management activities. 

Agenda Item 3bPage 10



2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices 
which set out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve 
those policies and objectives. 

3. Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a 
Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship 
report) covering activities during the previous year. 

4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and 
monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for 
the execution and administration of treasury management 
decisions. 

5. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury 
management strategy and policies to a specific named body.  For 
this Council the delegated body is the Executive Board Sub-
Committee.  

 
3.5 This mid year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s 

Code of Practice, and covers the following: 
 

• An economic update for the first six months of 2011/12; 

• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
(TMSS) and Annual Investment Strategy (AIS); 

• The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators); 

• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2011/12; 

• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2011/12; 

• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2011/12; 

• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 
2011/12. 

 
4.0 KEY CHANGES TO THE TREASURY AND CAPITAL STRATEGIES 
 
4.1 There have been no material changes to the treasury or capital 

strategies for the first 6 months of 2011/12. 
 
5.0 ECONOMIC UPDATE 

5.1 Global economy 

The Euro zone sovereign debt crisis continued with Spain, and 
particularly Italy, being the focus of renewed market concerns that they 
may soon join with Greece, Ireland and Portugal in needing assistance.  
This uncertainty and the lack of a co-ordinated or credible euro zone 
response, left commentators concerned over the potential impact of 
sovereign default and the resulting effect on the euro zone banking 
sector.  
 

Page 11



The approval by various countries of the £440bn bail out fund in 
September has brought temporary relief to financial markets but this 
does not provide a credible remedy to the scale of the Greek debt 
problem or the sheer magnitude of the potential needs of other 
countries for support. 

 
This, coupled with political difficulties in the US over their plans to 
address the budget deficit, the size and control over the US sovereign 
debt, and the subsequent loss of the AAA credit rating from Standard 
and Poors, has led to a much more difficult and uncertain outlook for 
the world economy.  
 
Growth prospects in the US, UK and the euro zone have been lower 
than expected, with future prospects similarly cut. Whilst not a central 
view, concerns of a double dip recession in some Western countries 
have increased. World stock markets fell in the second quarter of 
2011/12 as a consequence. 

5.2 UK economy 

Following zero growth in the final half of 2010/11 the UK economy grew 
by a weaker than expected 0.2% in the first quarter of 2011/12, 
providing a knock on effect to future growth prospects.  Growth 
prospects will be governed by UK consumer sentiment, which is 
currently subdued due to falling disposable income. Higher VAT, 
overhanging debt, high inflation and concerns over employment are 
likely to weigh heavily on consumers into the future. 
 

Inflation remains stubbornly high, although the expectation of future 
falls, the external nature of the price increases (energy, oil, food etc.), 
and the negative impact a rate rise would have on the UK economy, is 
likely to stop the Monetary Policy Committee from raising the Bank 
Rate for some considerable time to come. An indicator of the 
worsening position arose from the Monetary Policy Committee minutes 
recently signalling a greater willingness to expand the quantitative 
easing programme  
 

International investors continue to view UK government gilts as being a 
safe haven from the EU sovereign debt crisis. The consequent 
increase in demand for gilts has helped to add downward pressure on 
gilt yields and sent PWLB borrowing rates to low levels. 

 

5.3 Outlook for the next six months of 2011/12 
 

There remain huge uncertainties in economic forecasts due to the 
following major difficulties: 
  

• the speed of economic recovery in the UK, US and EU; 

Page 12



• the likely political gridlock in the US preventing significant 
government fiscal action to boost growth ahead of the Presidential 
elections in November 2012; 

• the potential for a major EU sovereign debt crisis which could 
have a significant impact on financial markets and the global and 
UK economy; 

• the degree to which government austerity programmes will 
dampen economic growth; 

• the potential for more quantitative easing, and the timing of this in 
both the UK and US; 

• the speed of recovery of banks’ profitability and balance sheet 
imbalances;  

 
The overall balance of risks is weighted to the downside: 
 

• The expectations are low and modest growth in the UK to 
continue, with a low Bank Rate to continue for at least 12 months, 
coupled with a possible extension of quantitative easing. This will 
keep investment returns depressed. 

 

• The expected longer run trend for PWLB borrowing rates is for 
them to rise, primarily due to the need for a high volume of gilt 
issuance in the UK, and the high volume of debt issuance in other 
major western countries.  However the current safe haven status 
of the UK may continue for some time, postponing any increases 
until 2012. 

 
5.4 Economic Forecast 

 
The following forecast has been provided by Sector: 

 

 
 
6.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
6.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2011/12 

was approved by full Council on 2nd March 2011. 
 

 NOW Dec11 Mar12 Jun12 Sep12 Dec12 Mar13 Jun13 Sep13 Dec13 Mar14 Jun14 
Sectors 
Bank Rate 
View 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 
 

 
0.50% 

 
0.50% 

 
0.75% 

 
1.00% 

 
1.25% 

 
1.50% 

5yr PWLB 
 

2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.10% 

10yr PWLB 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 4.00% 4.20% 

25yr PWLB 4.20% 4.20% 4.20% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 

50yr PWLB 4.30% 4.30% 4.30% 4.30% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 

Page 13



7.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS) 
 

7.1 As part of the Councils ongoing requirement to report to members the 
current capital position, the Council is required to prepare prudential 
indicators and report on any significant variations to those set as part of 
the Treasury Management Strategy. These indicators can be found in 
Appendix One to this report. 

 

7.2 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) has changed from 
£113.96m to £122.37m as a result of slippage in the 2010/11 
programme. This has the effect of reducing the actual CFR and the 
underlying need to borrow in 2010/11 and increasing it in 2011/12. The 
overall result remains the same and does not increase the Councils 
overall borrowing requirement in 2011/12.   

 
7.3 There are no expected material changes to the capital programme as 

set out in the original budget for the remainder of 2011/12. 
 

7.4 The Operational Director - Finance reports that no difficulties are 
envisaged for the current or future years in complying with any of the 
prudential indicators.   
 

8.0 INVESTMENT AND BORROWING PORTFOLIO 
 

Investments 

8.1 In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure 
security of capital and liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of 
return which is consistent with the Council’s risk appetite. It is a very 
difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates 
commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low and in line 
with the 0.5% Bank Rate.  

8.2 The continuing euro zone sovereign debt crisis, and its potential impact 
on banks, prompts a low risk and short term strategy. Given this risk 
adverse environment, investment returns are likely to remain low.  

8.3 The Council held £52.8m of investments as at 30th September 2011 
(£9.55m at 31 March 2011) and the investment portfolio yield for the 
first six months of the year is 1.125% against a benchmark of 3-month 
LIBID at 0.60%. 

 
8.4 The Operational Director – Finance confirms that the approved limits 

within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during the 
first six months of 2011/12. 

 
8.5 The forecast income and outturn for the first six months of 2011/12 is 

£0.218m when compared with a budget of £0.037m at the half year 
stage. This is due to the management of cash deposits around the 

Page 14



planned delivery of the capital programme and most notably the 
acquisition of land for the Mersey Gateway project. 

 
8.6 The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the 

TMSS is meeting the requirement of the treasury management 
function. 

 
 New Borrowing 
 
8.7 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2011/12 was set 

at £113.96m. The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to 
borrow for capital purposes.  If the CFR is positive the Council may 
borrow from the PWLB or the market (external borrowing) or from 
internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing). The 
balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by 
market conditions.   

 
8.8 Due to the overall financial position and the underlying need to borrow 

for capital purposes, new external borrowing of £33.0m was 
undertaken from the PWLB / market as follows: 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
It is anticipated that further borrowing will be undertaken during this 
financial year to support the capital programme. 

 
9.0 COUNTERPARTY LIMITS 
 
9.1 The recent credit downgrading of many well know UK high street banks 

has reduced the Council’s ability to select an appropriate counterparty 
who is not exposed to current market conditions.  

 
9.2 The Council has scaled back its investment terms to 3 months for all 

counterparties who are not backed by UK Government. This will have a 
direct impact on the interest income it expects to receive during 
2011/12. The Council’s key priority is security of funds deposited in 
exchange for interest foregone. 

 
9.3 As a consequence of delays in the capital programme, and in particular 

the Mersey Gateway project, more investments are being held with UK 
backed LloydsTSB and the Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS). With 
potential further delays likely combined with advanced borrowing where 
beneficial, it is recommended to increase the counterparty limits of 
LloydsTSB and RBS as follows: 

Source Value (£m) Rate (%) Date Period 

PWLB 10,000 2.21 07/04/2011 18 months 

Market 3,000 1.50 06/04/2011 12 months 

Market 7,000 1.50 07/04/2011 12 months 

Market 8,000 0.85 14/07/2011 12 months 

Market 5,000 1.35 25/08/2011 24 months 

Total 33,000       

Page 15



     Current   Revised 
    <3months >3months <3months >3months 

LloydsTSB   £20million £15million £30million £20million 
 RBS   £20million £15million £30million £20million 
 
9.4 The counterparty limits will be reviewed and adjusted where 

appropriate in the Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13. 
 
10.0 DEBT RESCHEDULING 
 
10.1 No debt rescheduling was undertaken during the first six months of 

2011/12. 
 
11.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None 
 
12.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 None 
 
13.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
13.1  Children and Young People in Halton 
  
 None 
 
13.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
   
    None  
 
13.3  A Healthy Halton 
 
 None 
 
13.4  A Safer Halton 
 
 None 
 
13.5  Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
 None 
 
14.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
14.1 The main risks with Treasury Management are security of investment 

and volatility of return. To combat this, the Authority operates within a 
clearly defined Treasury Management Policy and annual borrowing and 
investment strategy, which sets out the control framework  

 

Page 16



15.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
15.1 There are no issues under this heading. 
 
16.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
16.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX ONE 
 

HBC Treasury Management Prudential and Treasury Management 
Indicators 2011/12 to date 

 

      Original Revised 

              

  Prudential Indicators          

            

  Total capital expenditure  £m 80.56 78.54 

            

  Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 2010/11 £m 86.11 76.10 

            

  Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 2011/12           £m 113.96 122.37 

            

  Treasury Management          

            

  Adopted CIPFA Code of Practice   yes yes 

  for Treasury management          

            

  Authorised limit for external debt  £m 92.00 92.00 

            

  Operational boundary for external debt  £m 82.00 82.00 

              

 

Page 17



Agenda Item 4a Page 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3a Treasury Management 2011/12: 2nd Quarter July Œ September
	3b Treasury Management 2011/12: Mid-Year Review
	4a Waste Reception, Recycling and Transfer Services Tender

